
 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of April 3
rd

, 2012 1 

Town of Eliot 
REGULAR PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES April 3rd, 2012 7PM 

 
ITEM 1 - ROLL CALL  
 

Present: Steve Beckert – Chairman, Jeff Duncan – Vice Chairman, Dennis Lentz, 
Larry Bouchard and Greg Whalen - Alternative. 
 
Also present: Jim Marchese, Code Enforcement Officer and Tina Buckley, 
Animal Control Officer. 

 
Steve Beckert appointed Greg Whalen as a voting member for this meeting.  
 
ITEM 2 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ITEM 3 – MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

ITEM 4 - REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES AND INVOICES AS NEEDED 
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to approve the minutes of the December 6th, 2011 
Planning Board meeting, as written. 
Dennis Lentz seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs.  
 
ITEM 5 - REVIEW OF "NOTICE OF DECISION" LETTERS, AS NEEDED 
 
There were no notice of decision letters to review. 
 
ITEM 6 - PUBLIC APPLICATIONS OR PLANNING BOARD BUSINESS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 
 

A. 10-minute public input session 
 
Public input session opened. 
 
No comments. 
 
Public input session closed.  
 

B. Discuss proposed ordinance to regulate the keeping of domesticated 
chickens. 
 

Steve Beckert stated that the Board should have received a draft ordinance dated March 
5th from the Code Enforcement Officer, which would regulate the keeping of domesticated 
chickens. He stated that he was taken aback by some of the standards Mr. Marchese 
proposed, such as the provision that does not allow chicken wire to be used. 
 
Jim Marchese, Code Enforcement Officer stated that he worked with Animal Control 
Officer, Tina Buckley, to come up with some language to regulate the keeping of 
domesticated chickens in the Village and Suburban zones via an ordinance amendment. 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of April 3
rd

, 2012 2 

He stated that the Board of Appeals recently issued an advisory opinion that chicken 
coops fall under the existing definition of “Agriculture,” however, chickens are known to 
cause excessive noise, odor and attract wild animals so he believed some regulations 
should be adopted to address those issues. He handed out a letter dated April 3rd to the 
Planning Board, which he explained would replace the draft ordinance dated March 5th 
that he previously submitted to the Board.  
 
Steve Beckert asked if the 4-page ordinance previously submitted by the Code 
Enforcement Officer was still on the table.  
 
Jim Marchese stated that it was not. He stated that after speaking with Tina Buckley, they 
agreed that adding definitions for “Animal breeding & care” and “Livestock” would be a 
simpler way of approaching this issue. 
 
Dennis Lentz stated that he was opposed to the idea and thought the proposed annual fee 
of $25 and re-inspection fee of $150 was extremely high. 
 
Greg Whalen asked what the process was to move ahead with a revision like this. 
 
Steve Beckert stated that this is a land use ordinance the Planning Board has been asked 
to review it and possibly move forward with an amendment.  
 
Greg Whalen asked what would happen if the Planning Board decided not to proceed with 
it. 
 
Steve Beckert stated that if the Board decided not to proceed with it then no further action 
would be taken unless a citizen’s petition were brought forth.  
 
Greg Whalen asked who was advocating for these new regulations.  
 
Steve Beckert stated that it came from the code enforcement officer. 
 
Dennis Lentz asked Jim Marchese if the Board of Selectmen actually directed him to write 
a new ordinance.  
 
Jim Marchese stated that the Board of Selectmen directed him to write an ordinance 
amendment following the recent Board of Appeals case.  
 
Steve Beckert asked Animal Control Officer, Tina Buckley, what her thoughts on an 
amended ordinance were.  
 
Officer Tina Buckley stated that she has received multiple complaints about chickens in 
the Village zone. If not properly penned they can attract foxes and raccoons, even in 
populated areas. 
 
Jeff Duncan asked what was driving this need for new regulations. He questioned whether 
it was because there are no existing regulations about chickens or if the existing rules 
were lacking something.  
 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of April 3
rd

, 2012 3 

Jim Marchese stated that ambiguity in the language of the existing ordinance was driving 
the need for change. He stated there were two uses in Sec. 45-290 (Table of permitted 
and prohibited uses) that would include the keeping of domesticated chickens – 
Agriculture and Animal Breeding & Care. He stated that there’s currently no definition of 
“Animal breeding & care” and the definition of “Agriculture” applies only to properties in the 
Shoreland zone.  
 
Greg Whalen asked how the code enforcement officer dealt with complaints when there is 
ambiguity like this. 
 
Jim Marchese stated that when there are two conflicting terms in an ordinance the least 
restrictive shall apply. 
 
Greg Whalen asked if the discussion tonight was a result of the Code Enforcement Officer 
asking the Planning Board to change the ordinance or if someone else was directing this 
change.  
 
Steve Beckert stated that he believed the draft ordinance dated March 5th, 2012 was 
written by the Code Enforcement Officer. 
 
Greg Whalen asked the Animal Control Officer if she ever received complaints about other 
animals like cows or horses. 
 
Officer Tina Buckley stated that she hadn’t received any complaints about horses or cows 
and noted that most complaints she receives about chickens come from the Village zone.  
 
Greg Whalen asked if the Town was subject to any State or local laws regarding animal 
cruelty. 
 
Officer Tina Buckley stated that the Town of Eliot has an Animal Control ordinance that 
regulates animal noise, odor, controls animal waste, leash laws, requires licenses and 
rabies immunizations. She stated that there are also State laws pertaining to animal 
welfare  
 
Greg Whalen asked who enforced those laws and how they related to the land use codes. 
 
Officer Tina Buckley stated that the existing Town animal control ordinances are enforced 
by the Police Department and are more concerned with things like requiring licenses and 
rabies tags, controlling animal waste, and noise, whereas the State statutes are more 
concerned with animal welfare, establishing penalties for animal cruelty, regulating the 
sale of dogs and cats, provisions for research institutions, etc. She stated that she had 
seen other towns adopt two types of agricultural uses – personal and commercial, which 
allowed people to have things like chickens or cows for their own personal use without 
needing to meet the regulations of a commercial farm.  
 
The Board asked Kate Pelletier to look into having two classes of agriculture and 
incorporate them into a draft ordinance for the next meeting. 
 

C. Discuss proposed amendment from Code Enforcement Officer to amend the 
municipal fee schedule – Sec. 1-25. 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of April 3
rd

, 2012 4 

 
Steve Beckert stated that the Board should have received the letter from the Code 
Enforcement Officer dated February 16th regarding increasing various permit fees. He 
asked Jim Marchese to explain the rationale behind this. 
 
Jim Marchese stated that records indicate an update to the fee schedule hadn’t been done 
since 2004. When compared to surrounding towns’ fees, Eliot’s appear to be quite low.  
 
Steve Beckert asked Mr. Marchese if he was directed by someone to propose these 
changes. 
 
Jim Marchese stated that he asked the Board of Selectmen for permission to propose an 
amendment to the fee schedule.  
 
Steve Beckert stated that Kate Pelletier had gone through the proposed changes and 
provided comments in a draft dated April 2nd.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated that in many instances there was no directive within the ordinances to 
collect the fees the code enforcement officer is proposing. For example, a $100 fee for 
excavation permits is proposed however, Sec. 37-55, which requires excavation permits 
doesn’t authorize the Town to collect a fee. This is also the case with telecommunications 
structures and review of uses in the Shoreland zone.  She stated that if the Planning 
Board decides to proceed with these changes they’ll also have to add language to those 
ordinances that a fee is required. She also stated that some of the proposed fees are 
controlled by the State. For example, the Code Enforcement Officer proposes a $50 
“Admin fee” to review subsurface wastewater permits plus a $250 application fee and $15 
surcharge where the State limits the fee at a maximum of $250. 
 
The Board asked Kate Pelletier to prepare a spreadsheet for the next meeting comparing 
the existing fees to the proposed fees and identifying which fees are new and which are 
existing.  
 
ITEM 7 - ACTION ITEM LIST  
 
ITEM 8 – CORRESPONDENCE, OTHER AS NEEDED 
 
The Board reviewed and approved the 2011 annual Planning Board report for the 
Town Book. 
 
ITEM 9 - SET AGENDA AND DATE FOR NEXT MEETNG 
 
The next regular Planning Board meeting was scheduled for April 17th, 2012. 
 
ITEM 10 – ADJOURN 
 

MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to adjourn at 8:40PM. 
Jeff Duncan seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs.  



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of April 3
rd

, 2012 5 

_____________________________ 
                                                                          Stephen Beckert, Chairman 

 
        Date approved: _______________ 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Kate Pelletier, Recording Secretary 


